
 

 

 
 
 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
(Statutory) 
 
Monday 6 November 2023 at 10.00 am 
 
To be held at the Town Hall, Pinstone 
Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH 
 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

Councillors Roger Davison, Ian Horner and Abdul Khayum (Chair)  
Sioned-Mair Richards (Reserve) 
 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 
 
The Licensing Committee carries out a statutory licensing role, including licensing for 
taxis and public entertainment.  
 
As a lot of the work of this Committee deals with individual cases, some meetings 
may not be open to members of the public.   
 
Recording is allowed at Licensing Committee meetings under the direction of the 
Chair of the meeting.  Please see the website or contact Democratic Services for 
details of the Council’s protocol on audio/visual recording and photography at council 
meetings. 
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk. You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if 
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance.  The 
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between 
9.00 am and 4.45 pm. on Friday.   
 
You may not be allowed to see some reports because they contain confidential 
information.  These items are usually marked * on the agenda.  
 
If you require any further information please contact Democratic Services via email 
committee@sheffield.gov.uk 
 
 
 

FACILITIES 
 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall.  Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. 
 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the 
side to the main Town Hall entrance. 
 
 

http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/business-economy/licensing/general-licensing
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/
mailto:committee@sheffield.gov.uk


 

 

 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE AGENDA 

6 NOVEMBER 2023 
 

Order of Business 
  
1.   Welcome and Housekeeping Arrangements 

  
2.   Apologies for Absence 

  
3.   Exclusion of Public and Press 
 To identify items where resolutions may be moved to exclude the press and 

public 
  

4.   Declarations of Interest 
 Members to declare any interests they have in the business to be considered 

at the meeting 
  

5.   Gambling Act 2005 - Royal Amusements, 9 Fargate, Sheffield, S1 2HD 
 Report of the Chief Licensing Officer 

  
  
  
  



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its Policy Committees, or of any 
committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-committee of the authority, 
and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) relating to any business that 
will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 
• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 

aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

• participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 
• leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 
• make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 

meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

• declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 
If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 
• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, 

which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes. 
 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 
• Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or 

a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority –  
 
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
- which has not been fully discharged. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 2 

 
• Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 

have and which is within the area of your council or authority. 
 
• Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil 

partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month 
or longer. 
 

• Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
- the landlord is your council or authority; and  
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a 

beneficial interest. 
 
• Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 

securities of a body where -  
 

(a)  that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
your council or authority; and  
 

(b)  either - 
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  
- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 

value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

• a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 
 

• it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 

Page 6



 3 

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously. 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Standards 
Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from David Hollis, General Counsel by emailing 
david.hollis@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

Page 7

mailto:david.hollis@sheffield.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 
 

         
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

   
Report of:   Chief Licensing Officer, Head of Licensing    
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    Monday 6th November at 10am 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject:   Gambling Act 2005 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Shimla Finch                             
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary: To consider an application to grant a premises licence  

for an Adult Gaming Centre made under the Gambling Act 2005 for  
Royal Amusements, 9 Fargate, Sheffield, S1 2HD 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendations:   That members carefully consider the representations made in accordance 

with the legislation, codes of practice, guidance to local authorities and the 
Licensing Authority’s Statement of Principles (policy). 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers:   Attached documents 
 Sheffield City Councils Statement of Principles – Gambling Act 2005 
    Gambling Commissions Guidance for Licensing Authorities 
    Gambling Commisions Licence Conditions and Code of Practice 
            
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN  
 
 

 
 
 

 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
Licensing Sub Committee 

Report 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-12/gambling-policy-statement-of-principles-2022.pdf
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/authorities/guide/codes-of-practice


REPORT OF THE CHIEF LICENSING OFFICER              Ref No 125/23 
(HEAD OF LICENSING) TO THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
GAMBLING ACT 2005 
 

Royal Amusements, 9 Fargate, Sheffield, S1 2HD 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To consider an application for the grant of a premises licence for an ‘Adult Gaming Centre’ 

made under section 159 of the Gambling Act 2005.   
 
2.0 BACKGROUND – THE GAMBLING REGULATORY FRAMEWORK 
 
2.1  The Gambling Commission is responsible for regulating gambling in accordance with the 

Act, and for issuing ‘operating licences’ to gambling businesses and ‘personal licences’ to 
individuals. To help fulfil its role, the Commission attach licence conditions and issue codes 
of practice relating to how gambling facilities should be provided, and guidance to Licensing 
Authorities on how to implement their responsibilities under the Act. Operators must have or 
be in the process of applying for an ‘operating licence’ before they apply for a ‘premises 
licence’ in Local Authority areas. 

 
2.2 Licensing Authorities are a key partner in gambling regulation, with a responsibility for 

overseeing ‘non-remote’ gambling in their local areas. This involves:  
 

• setting the local framework for gambling through their statement of principles  

• considering applications and issuing licences for premises where gambling takes place, 
with conditions where appropriate  

• reviewing or revoking premises licences  

• issuing permits for some forms of gambling  

• undertaking inspection and enforcement activities, including tackling illegal gambling. 
 
2.3 Like the Gambling Commission, Licensing Authorities are bound by a statutory ‘aim to permit’ 

and must grant premises licences so long as applications are:  
 

• in accordance with the Gambling Commission’s codes of practice  

• in accordance with the guidance to local authorities  

• in accordance with the licensing authority’s own statement of principles  

• reasonably consistent with the three licensing objectives.  
  
 ADULT GAMING CENTRES (AGCs) 
 
2.4 An adult gaming centre premises licence entitles the holder to make gaming machines 

available for use within an adult gaming centre. The Act permits the following on AGCs: 
 

1. Category B machines 
(The Category B machines are limited to B3 and B4 and the number of category B 
machines must not exceed 20% of the total number of gaming machines which are 

Page 10

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities/gla-part-2-the-licensing-framework
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities/gla-part-2-the-licensing-framework
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/lccp/online
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/lccp/online
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities/gla-part-2-the-licensing-framework
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/lccp/online
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities/gla-part-2-the-licensing-framework
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-12/gambling-policy-statement-of-principles-2022.pdf
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities/part-5-licensing-objectives


available for use on the premises) 
2. Unlimited category C and D machines 

 
2.5 Details of the machine categories can be found on the following link: The Categories of 

Gaming Machines Regulations 2007 
 
2.6  The following details the access permitted to an AGC: 

• No one under the age of 18 is permitted to enter an Adult Gaming Centre. 

• No customer must be able to access the premises directly from any other licensed 
gambling premises. 

 
2.7 Details of our local policy on Adult Gaming Centres can be found at part 7.8 of SCC’s 

Statement of Principles (Gambling Policy), a section of which is detailed below for ease: 
 

 

Page 11

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/2158/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/2158/contents/made
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-12/gambling-policy-statement-of-principles-2022.pdf
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-12/gambling-policy-statement-of-principles-2022.pdf


2.8 Further information on AGCs can be found in the: 

• Gambling Commissions guidance to Local Authorities. 

• Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice (gamblingcommission.gov.uk) 
 
Mandatory and default conditions of ACGs 
 

2.9 The majority of premises licences under the Gambling Act 2005 will have mandatory and/or 
default conditions attached to the licence under The Gambling Act 2005 (Mandatory and 
Default Conditions) (England and Wales) Regulations 2007.  Default conditions are 
prescribed in regulations and will be attached to all classes of premises licence, unless 
excluded by the licensing authority.  Mandatory conditions are automatically attached to a 
specific type of premises licence; the licensing authority has no discretion to alter or remove 
these conditions. These are detailed below: 
 

 Mandatory conditions attached to all premises licences. 
 

1) The conditions specified in paragraphs (2), (3) and (4) shall be attached to every 
premises licence. 

 

2) The summary of the terms and conditions of the premises licence issued under section 
164(1)(c) of the 2005 Act shall be displayed in a prominent place within the premises. 

 

3) The layout of the premises shall be maintained in accordance with the plan. 
 

4) The premises shall not be used for -  
 

(a) the sale of tickets in a private lottery or customer lottery, or  
 

(b) the sale of tickets in any other lottery in respect of which the sale of tickets on the 
premises is otherwise prohibited. 

  
 Mandatory conditions attached to Adult Gaming Centre premises licences 

 
1. A notice stating that no person under the age of 18 years is permitted to enter the 

premises shall be displayed in a prominent place at every entrance to the premises. 
 

2. No customer shall be able to access the premises directly from any other premises in 
respect of which a licence issued under Part 8 of the Act, or a permit issued under 
Schedule 10, 12 or 13 to the Act, has effect. 

 

3. Any ATM made available for use on the premises shall be located in a place that 
requires any customer who wishes to use it to cease gambling at any gaming machine 
in order to do so. 

 

4. (1) No alcohol shall be permitted to be consumed on the premises at any time during 
 which facilities for gambling are being provided on the premises. 

 

 (2) A notice stating the condition in sub-paragraph (1) shall be displayed in  a 
 prominent place at every entrance to the premises. 

Page 12

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities/gla-part-21-adult-gaming-centres
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/lccp/search?lccpsearch=adult+gaming+centre
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/1409/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/1409/contents/made


2.10 There are no Default Conditions on an Adult Gaming Centre licence. 
 
 LOCAL AREA RISK ASSESSMENTS 
 
2.11 The Licensing Authority needs to be satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that the 

particular location of the premises would not undermine the licensing objectives.  
 

2.12 The Gambling Commission’s Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice (LCCP), sets out 
requirements for licensees to assess local risks posed by the provision of gambling facilities 
at their premises and to have policies, procedures and control measures in place to mitigate 
those risks. The codes of practice require licensees to share their risk assessment with 
Licensing Authorities. 
 

2.13 Sheffield City Council’s policy on applicant’s local risk assessments is detailed in Part 5 of 
the Gambling Policy Statement of Principles, this details what the Authority expects 
applicants to consider and detail in their risk assessments. 

 
3.0 THE APPLICATION 
 
3.1 The applicant is Mr Mohammed Yousaf. 
 
3.2 The application was received by the Licensing Authority on the 16th of August 2023. A full 

copy of the following application documents is attached at Appendix ‘A’ of this report: 
 

• Premises licence application 

• Plan of the premises 

• Local Area Risk Assessment 
 
3.3 The Gambling Act 2005 and associated regulations, does not restrict the times that AGCs 

can operate. Therefore, AGCs may be open 24 hours, with the exception outlined in 
Section 183 of the Gambling Act 2005 which applies a condition on all premises licences 
that facilities for gambling must not be provided on Christmas Day. This application does 
not seek to restrict operating hours outside of this 24-hour entitlement. 

 
4.0 REASONS FOR REFERRAL 
 
4.1 The application has been referred to the Licensing Sub-Committee due to unresolved 

representations from the following which are attached at Appendix B: 
 

• Sheffield’s Office of Public Health  

• South Yorkshire Police (Responsible Authority) 

• Green Party City Ward Councillors – Cllr Ruth Mersereau and Cllr Martin Phills 
• ChangingSheff – ‘The residents’ association for 27,000 people living within a radius 

of 750 metres of City Hall’  

• Victoria Hall Methodist Church 

• The Foundry Victoria Hall 

• The Cathedral Church of St Peter & St Paul 

• 1 x resident objection 

Page 13

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/authorities/codes-of-practice/10
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-12/gambling-policy-statement-of-principles-2022.pdf
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-12/gambling-policy-statement-of-principles-2022.pdf


 
4.2 Sheffield’s Planning Department (a Responsible Authority under the Gambling Act 2005), 

have also made comments in relation to the application which is attached at Appendix ‘C’ 
with a copy of the applicant’s response.  

 
4.3   The objections referred to in 4.1 above detail concerns in relation to the following licensing 

objectives: 
 

• preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with 
crime or disorder or being used to support crime 

• protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by 
gambling. 

 
 In particular, the following factors: 
 

• Area is a hotspot for violence and antisocial behaviour 

• Area is part of a violent crime initiative 

• Lack of resources to deal with current issues in the area 

• Likely increased gambling activity with a high risk of harm to people who live, work, 
study and socialise in this mixed-use area 

• Increased exposure to gambling related harm issues and vulnerable people in the area 

• Content around city centre regeneration and plans 

• Risks around the location of the gambling premises in particular to: 

o Demographics of local area and close to areas of high deprivation 

o Close proximity to sensitive buildings and sensitive locations (examples given) 

o Density of gambling premises in area and vulnerable people 

o Risk of problem gamblers – typically male and in younger age groups - student 

population and nearby universities  

o Exposure and negative affect to children/young adults and vulnerable persons 

o Exposure to vulnerable persons - proximity of the congregation points for people 
suffering from mental health issues and drug and alcohol addiction – Archer Project 
/ McDonalds and the Cathedral grounds 

o The Foundry (close to proposed gambling premises) is a community hub for a 
number of support services including addiction support groups (sensitive building) 

 
4.4. The representations detail the proposed gambling premises are located near to sensitive 

buildings and locations. A list and plans have been mapped out for Members to view 
premises that may fall within those listed in Part 5 of the Gambling Statement of Principles 
(policy) along with information relating to the area as described under the same part of the 
policy. This is attached at Appendix ‘D’ of this report.  

 
4.5 The applicant and the objectors have been invited to attend the hearing. Copies of the front 

page of the notices are attached to this report labelled Appendix ‘E’. 
 
5.0 POLICIES, STRATEGIES AND PLANS TO CONSIDER 
 
51 Members are to consider the following policies, strategies and plans: 

Page 14

https://www.archerproject.org.uk/


 Sheffield City Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 

• Part 3 – Integrating Strategies 

• Part 4 – Licensing Objectives 
o In particular to Objective 3 – protecting children and other vulnerable persons from 

being harmed or exploited by gambling 

• Part 5 – Location, Area Profiling and Risk assessments 
o 5.2 Policy- Location 
o 5.3 Areas profiling and risk assessments 
o 5.4 Policy - Risk 
o 5.5 Policy - Area 

• Part 7 – Premises licence 
o 7.8 Adult Gaming Centre 

 
 Gambling Commission Guidance to Local Authorities: 

• Part 21 – Adult Gaming Centres – all 5 paragraphs 
 
 Gambling Commission’s code of practice: 

• Licence conditions and codes of practice (LCCP) – assessing local risk 
 

• Regeneration of Fargate and High Street (welcometosheffield.co.uk) 

• City Centre Strategic Vision | Sheffield City Council 
 
6.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 There are no specific financial implications arising from this application.  However, additional 

costs may be incurred should the matter go to appeal.  In such an eventuality it may not be 
possible to recover all these costs.  The impact of these additional costs (if any) will be kept 
under review and may be subject of a further report during the year. 

 
7.0      THE LEGAL POSITION 
 
7.1 The Section 153 of the Gambling Act 2005, provides that in determining applications the 

licensing authority shall aim to permit the use of the premises for gambling in so far as it 
thinks it is–  

 
a) in accordance with any relevant (Gambling Commissions) code of practice under section 

24,  
b) in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission under section 25,  
c) reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject to paragraphs (a) and (b)), 

and  
d) in accordance with the statement published by the authority under section 349 (subject 

to paragraphs (a) to (c)).  
 
7.2 In determining whether to grant a premises licence a licensing authority may not have regard 

to the expected demand for the facilities which it is proposed to provide. 
 
7.3  If the licensing authority issues an adult gaming centre premises licence, this will be subject 

to the mandatory conditions applicable to such premises licences, as prescribed under 

Page 15

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-12/gambling-policy-statement-of-principles-2022.pdf
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities/gla-part-21-adult-gaming-centres
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/authorities/codes-of-practice/10
https://www.welcometosheffield.co.uk/content/articles/regeneration-of-fargate-and-high-street/
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/planning-development/city-centre-strategic-vision
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/lccp/online
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities/gla-part-2-the-licensing-framework
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities/part-5-licensing-objectives
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-12/gambling-policy-statement-of-principles-2022.pdf


section 167 of the Act. The mandatory conditions are details in paragraph 2.9 above. 
  
7.4 Further to the mandatory conditions, where a licensing authority issue a premises licence 

they may  
(a) attach a condition to the licence  
(b) exclude a condition that would otherwise be attached to the licence by virtue of section 

168 of the Act (default conditions) There are however no default conditions prescribed 
under section 168 of the Act in relation to adult gaming centre premises licences. 

  
8.0      HEARINGS REGULATIONS 
 
8.1 Regulations governing hearings under the Gambling Act 2005 have been made by the 

Secretary of State. 
 
8.2 The Licensing Authority has provided all parties with the information required in the 

Regulations to the 2005 Act as set out at Appendix ‘E’. 
 
8.3 Attached at Appendix ‘E’’ is the following: - 
 

a)  a copy of the Notice of Hearing; 
b) the rights of a party provided in Regulations; 
c) the consequences if a party does not attend or is not represented at the hearing  
d) the procedure to be followed at the hearing. 

 
9.0      APPEALS 
 
9.1 The Gambling Act 2005 section 206 makes provision for appeals to be made by the applicant 

and those making representations against decisions of the Licensing Authority to the 
Magistrates’ Court. 

 
10.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
9.1  That members carefully consider the representations made in accordance with the 

legislation, codes of practice, guidance to local authorities and the Licensing Authority’s 
Statement of Principles (policy). 

 
11.0    OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE 
 
11.1 To grant the premises licence in the terms requested. 

 
11.2  To grant the premises licence with conditions. 

 
11.3    To reject the application.  
 
 
 
 

Stephen Lonnia       
Chief Licensing Officer, Head of Licensing                          Date:  6th November 2023 

Page 16

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/173/made#:~:text=Regulation%208%20requires%20hearings%20to,examine%20persons%20at%20the%20hearing.


Appendix ‘A 

Application documents 

Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



 

 
 

Local Area Risk Assessment  

 

Premises number or 
licence number: 

  
 TBC 
  

 
Region (if 
applicable): 
 

South Yorkshire 

 
Area (if applicable): 
 

Sheffield  

 
Premises Address: 

 
9 Fargate 
Sheffield 
S1 2HD 
 
 
 

 
Name of Assessor: 

  
 Sandy Stuart 
  

 
Colleagues Present:  Mohammed Riaz 

  

 

 
Date of assessment: 
 

18/07/2023 

 
Review date: 
 

17/07/2024 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



Local Area 

Licensing Objective Risks 
Existing Control 
Measures 

Further Controls Recommended 

1a  Protecting children 
and other vulnerable 
persons from being 
harmed or exploited 
by gambling 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
Children entering site 
unnoticed or unchallenged 
 
 
Local takeaways / shops  
Used by children 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
No risks associated with 
vulnerable people presently  
 
  
 
 

  
Think 21 Policy  

 
ID requested from 
anyone who looks 

under the age of 21 
 

If a child has entered 
premises immediately 

asked to leave and 
noted in the log. 

 
Children/ vulnerable 

people already 
protected in the sense 
that no visibility inside 

shop as all windows will 
not be able to see in  

 
 
 
 

  
Request ID from any person in the shop that looks 
under the age of 21. 
 
If children enter the premises as immediately to leave 
 
Make a description of child as well as the incident in 
log as to make other staff members aware  

P
age 25



1b  Preventing 
Gambling from 
being a source of 
crime or disorder, 
being associated 
with crime or 
disorder or being 
used to support 
crime 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Money Laundering  

 
No criminal activity is 
allowed on premises. 

If any suspicion of 
criminal activity arises 

police are informed 
immediately.  

 
A note is made in the 

log of suspicious 
activity. 

 
 
 

Suspicious activity is 
reported to Money 
laundering officer 

immediately and a note 
is made in the log. 

 
Not to be discussed 

with anyone 
confidentially is 

paramount  

  
Make a note of description of persons conducting 
criminal activity.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 

P
age 26



1c Ensuring that 
gambling is 
conducted in a fair 
and open way 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

All activities conducted in line 

with GLA 2015 

 

Fair Gambling Charity 

 

 

All relevant licences are 

present. 

 

Literature available on 

site to read by 

customer/employee  

 

Stay in control posters 

available  

  
 
N/A 

 

P
age 27



Gambling Operation & Physical Design (Internal and External) 

Licensing Objective Risks 
Existing Control 
Measures 

Further Controls Recommended 

2a Protecting children 
and other vulnerable 
persons from being 
harmed or exploited 
by gambling 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
Children entering from 

outside, through entrance 
 
 
 

Venerable people  

  
Think 21 policy anyone 

under age of 21 is 
asked for ID 

 
 

Extremely vigilant, staff 
are aware on sight to 
treat with caution and 
advise customer not to 
gamble. Noted in log    

  
Staff to be extra vigilant   
 
 
 
Staff to be extra vigilant   

P
age 28



2b  Preventing 
Gambling from 
being a source of 
crime or disorder, 
being associated 
with crime or 
disorder or being 
used to support 
crime 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
We will not allow any from of 

crime or disorder on sight  

  
Use of CCTV 

 
Alarms 

 
Monitoring 

 
 

Regular liaison with 
local law enforcement 
agencies as and when 

needed. 
 

Maintain Log 
 

Keep abreast of local 
crime trends 

 

  

P
age 29



2c Ensuring that 
gambling is 
conducted in a fair 
and open way 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

All activities conducted in line 

with GLA2015 

 

 

 

 

All relevant licences are 

present. 

 

Literature available on 

site to read by 

customer/employee  

 

Everything conducted in 

fair and open way 

 

Percentages on machines 

clearly visible. 

 

 

  
 
N/A 

 

P
age 30



Action Plan 

Local Area 
(insert 
number) 

Gambling 
Operation and 
Physical Design 
(insert number) 

Question Action Required 
By Whom 
(name) 

By When 
(date) 

Date 
Completed 

 
 
 
 

           

 
 
 
 

           

 
 
 
 

           

 
 
 
 

           

 
 
 
 

           

 
 
 
 

           

 

 

 

P
age 31



Assessment Review 

Frequency of Review 
(enter time period e.g. 12 

months)   

Date Review 
Due 

  

Completed Risk Assessment brought to the attention of: 

Name 
(person responsible for premises and/or  

implementing control measures) 
Position Signature 

Date the this 
assessment 
was brought 

to this 
persons 
attention 

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

  

     

     

 

P
age 32



Appendix ‘B’
Representations / objections 

Page 33



1 

PUBLIC HEALTH OBJECTION – Royal Amusements 

PROPOSAL: Grant Application for a Premises Licence, Adult Gaming Centre 

LOCATION: 9 Fargate, Sheffield S1 2HD 

COMMENTING OFFICER: , Assistant Director of 
Public Health on behalf of , Director of Public Health 
and  

, Senior Public Health Analyst 

DATE: 1 September 2023 

COMMENTS 

Dear Licensing Authority 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this grant application. On behalf of Sheffield City 

Council Public Health Team, we have reviewed this application to grant a licence for an Adult Gaming 

Centre and need to raise some fundamental concerns about the proposal.  

Public Health’s overarching aim is to work to protect and improve the public’s health and reduce 

health inequalities. 

The grounds for this objection are outlined below and based around the premise of the gambling 

objective ‘protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by 

gambling’.  

In summary, our main objections are: 

1. People likely to be the most negatively affected by this potential premises include children, young

adults and vulnerable people; people in treatment for gambling related harms; people in treatment

for alcohol addiction; people living in areas of high deprivation; people from ethnic minority groups;

and people living with financial hardship.

2. If granted a license, this premises would lead to likely increased gambling activity with a high risk

of harm to people who live, work, study and socialise in this mixed-use area. This area has a rough

sleeper and street begging population and numerous hostels and day centres in the vicinity, and is

very close to a university centre. The city centre due to its offer also attracts young adults who have

increased freedoms with reduced support networks, and people seeking help from local services for

debt, housing, and other financial problems. It is therefore likely to impact disproportionately on the

health of those most at risk.

3. There is already a high concentration of similar premises in the immediate and wider vicinity. An

Adult Gaming Centre is likely to have a net negative effect on the city centre and would not bring

any benefit as there are already many opportunities in the area for people to gamble if they choose

to do so, including an existing Adult Gaming Centre at 15 Haymarket which is 0.3km or a 4 minute

walk away. The proposed application would create clustering of similar venues which is detrimental

to the character, vitality and economic wellbeing of the city centre.

Sheffield's Office of Public Health

Page 34



2 

General Comments 
The application is within the City Ward, an area of average deprivation (based on the Indices of 
Multiple Deprivation 2019) containing smaller areas of above average deprivation and fringed by 
areas of Sheffield with higher than average levels of deprivation where health outcomes along with 
levels of fuel poverty and income deprivation are worse than the England average (figure 1).1 

Figure 1: Indices of Multiple Deprivation scores for City Ward and surrounding areas 

In light of the levels of deprivation and associated poor health in and around City Ward we consider 
there is a clear local health and wellbeing need for measures that prevent already deprived areas 
from schemes and systems that reinforce disadvantage and negative impact on human health. 

Gambling-related harms 
There is evidence to show that gambling can be a significant cause of harm to human health and 

wellbeing. 

A recent Public Health England evidence review of gambling-related harms found that people at risk 
of gambling harms are concentrated in areas of higher deprivation and may already be experiencing 
greater health inequalities.2 

1 Office for Health Improvement and Disparities (OHID), Local Health - Office for Health Improvement and Disparities - 
Indicators: maps, data and charts; Index of multiple deprivation, 2019. 
2 Public Health England, https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/gambling-related-harms-evidence-review, 
Gambling-Related Harms: Evidence Review, 2021. 

Page 35

https://www.localhealth.org.uk/#bbox=424200,394722,22035,13900&c=indicator&i=t1.income_dep&selcodgeo=E05010862&view=map12
https://www.localhealth.org.uk/#bbox=424200,394722,22035,13900&c=indicator&i=t1.income_dep&selcodgeo=E05010862&view=map12
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/gambling-related-harms-evidence-review


3 

The review highlights the link between gambling and mental health issues, including the conclusion 

that people with gambling problems are at least twice as likely to die from suicide compared to the 

general population.  

The Public Health England review also included the most comprehensive estimate of the economic 

burden of gambling on society to date by looking at the following categories of harms: financial; 

relationship disruption, conflict or breakdown; mental and physical health; cultural; employment 

and education; and criminal activity. The review found that harms associated with gambling cost at 

least £1.27 billion in 2019 to 2020 in England alone. This analysis includes the first estimate of the 

economic cost of suicide (£619.2 million) and provides an updated cost of homelessness associated 

with harmful gambling (£62.8 million).  

Sheffield accounts for approximately 1% of the population of England, and demographically 

reflects the English average. This means the societal harms associated with gambling in Sheffield 

are likely to be in the region of £12.7 million each year including £6.1m through suicide and £628k 

through homelessness. 

Gambling harms are not equally distributed throughout society. People from more affluent and less 

vulnerable groups are more likely to gamble, yet those who are already vulnerable and at risk of 

poor health are more at risk of gambling-related harms, further exacerbating existing inequalities.  

The groups for whom there is the strongest evidence for vulnerability to gambling harms include: 

• Men

• Those aged 16-44 years old

• People living in an area of higher deprivation

• People drinking alcohol at higher risk levels

• Those participating in seven or more gambling activities

Further examples of identified vulnerable groups at risk from gambling related harm are identified in 

Sheffield’s Gambling Act, Statement of Principles 2022.3 

While 3.8% of people in the general population gamble at levels of elevated risk, this increases to 

6.1% in those who are unemployed. Furthermore, 5.3% of people in the most deprived 

neighbourhoods are gambling at levels of elevated risk compared to 3.0% in the least deprived and 

rates of harmful gambling are over seven times higher in the most deprived neighbourhoods 

compared to the least deprived neighbourhoods.4 

These disparities are particularly clear when looking at land-based gambling venues, with 21% of 

venues located in the most deprive decile compared to 2% in the least deprived decile.5  A PHE 

evidence review in 2021 suggests that accessibility of gambling opportunities is associated with 

increased gambling and gambling-related harm.2 

Density of city centre gambling locations and vulnerable people 
Sheffield City Centre already has many gambling premises such as betting offices, amusement 

centres and bingo halls. Figure 2 shows that there are 11 physical locations to gamble within a 500m 

3 Sheffield City Council, Gambling Policy Statement of Principles (sheffield.gov.uk) 
4 Gambling Research Glasgow [2021] Gambling and the Red Wall: traditional pastime or modern menace? Available online 
at: https://www.grg.scot/resources/2021/10/Gambling-and-the-Red-Wall-briefing-paper.pdf  
5 Evans J. and Cross K. [2021] The geography of gambling premises in Britain. Available online at: 
https://bristol.ac.uk/geography/research/pfrc/themes/vulnerability/gambling/the-geography-of-gambling-premises-in-
britain/  

Page 36

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-12/gambling-policy-statement-of-principles-2022.pdf
https://www.grg.scot/resources/2021/10/Gambling-and-the-Red-Wall-briefing-paper.pdf
https://bristol.ac.uk/geography/research/pfrc/themes/vulnerability/gambling/the-geography-of-gambling-premises-in-britain/
https://bristol.ac.uk/geography/research/pfrc/themes/vulnerability/gambling/the-geography-of-gambling-premises-in-britain/


4 

walking distance (a 5 minute walk) of the proposed Adult Gaming Centre in Fargate and a total of 15 

locations within 1km (a 12 minute walk). This includes an existing Adult Gaming Centre at 15 

Haymarket which is 0.3km or a 4 minute walk away. This does not include additional gaming 

opportunities within the surrounding pubs, hotels, and social clubs and similar premises with a 

licence for a maximum of two gaming machines, as well as newsagent-type off licenses who retail 

opportunities to buy and gamble on lottery tickets and scratch-cards.  

Figure 2: Gambling locations within a 500m radius of 9 Fargate 

Figure 3 shows the density of betting and gambling premises by ward in Sheffield. City Ward has by 

far the highest density of premises of any ward, at 80 per 100,000 population. The second highest 

density – less than half of that in City Ward – is Darnall at 35 per 100,000 population. While it’s not 

unexpected that City Ward has a higher density of premises given the city centre offer, it clearly 

shows the saturation of offer within an area that contains a population vulnerable to gambling 

harms. 

The Archer Project, located at the Cathedral, provides a day centre for people that are 

homeless/rough sleeping so the footfall of vulnerable people is increased in the area. There is a 

known gambling issue with some people who are part of the street culture in the city centre, with 

staff from soup kitchens trying to access support from the gambling service from them. Children’s 

services in Sheffield City Council have three 16 year olds placed in Supported Accommodation 

nearby. There are also nearby Salvation Army and Roundabout hostels, plus South Yorkshire Housing 

Association have social housing in the area. 

Page 37



5 

Figure 3: Density of betting/gambling premises by ward 

In relation to these types of applications, planning and licensing authorities need to consider 

whether any special considerations need to be balanced against the use of the premises for 

gambling. This should include, for example, the spatial distribution of similar land uses in the local 

area and the impact on vulnerable people.6 In this example, there is both a high intensity of 

gambling premises and high numbers of vulnerable people.  

Gambling premises have a negative impact on the health of Sheffield’s high streets. The Marmot 

Review: Ten Years On report identified a higher concentration of gambling premises on high streets 

as the sign of an “unhealthy high street”, widening inequalities for the most vulnerable, and leading 

to poor mental and physical health.7  

Evidence shows that increasing accessibility and availability of gambling increases the number of 

regular and problem gamblers in an area.8 

Impact on children and young people 
While the gambling industry and its regulations take suitable measures to prevent children and 

young people from accessing licensed premises, there is likely to still be an impact on young people, 

not just those under the age of 18. This proposal is within walking distance of Sheffield Hallam 

University and, as a city centre shopping location, is well frequented by children and young people.  

Gambling advertising and visibility 
Although children are not legally permitted to gamble, advertising and visibility of gambling 

companies and products in places where children and young people are present can normalise 

gambling and make it appear appealing. A recent study conducted on behalf of GambleAware looked 

6 London Health Inequalities Network, SP410 - responding to the cumulative impact of betting shops (2013).pdf, 
Responding to the cumulative impact of betting shops, July 2013. 
7 Institute of Health Equity, Health Equity in England: The Marmot Review 10 Years On - The Health Foundation, Healthy 

Equity in England: The Marmot Review 10 Years On, February 2020. 
8 RSPH. Health on the high street [Internet]. 2015 [cited 2019 Nov 18]. Available from:  
https://www.rsph.org.uk/our-work/campaigns/health-on-the-high-street.html 

Page 38

file:///C:/Users/baikman/Downloads/SP410%20-%20responding%20to%20the%20cumulative%20impact%20of%20betting%20shops%20(2013).pdf
https://www.health.org.uk/publications/reports/the-marmot-review-10-years-on


6 

into the exposure to and impact of advertising of gambling products on children and young people.9 

The study found that, despite regulations prohibiting targeting of gambling advertising to under 18s: 

“Participants reported what they perceived to be high levels of exposure to gambling advertising and 

marketing and spoke of the ubiquitous nature of gambling advertising across multiple formats. The 

most common channels of exposure were identified as TV, social media and the high street – 

including inside and outside shops, billboards and presence of gambling venues…Seeing betting 

shops or casino arcades was spontaneously mentioned across the research, with participants arguing 

that they were more prevalent in less affluent areas. The presence of the shop brand and logo was 

seen to build brand recognition, and participants noted the window advertising used to prominently 

display promotions and odds of upcoming events.”  

The reviewers found that “exposure to the sheer volume of gambling advertising and marketing led 

to some normalisation of gambling and, on occasion, legitimisation among participants.” 

Public view 
Evidence from Bristol University showed that nearly three-quarters of consumers say that they 

would not want gambling premises on their ‘ideal’ high street, and there are concerns from those 

with lived experience of gambling harms that such venues “prey on those that can’t afford it and 

have taken over streets in rundown areas and towns”.10 

Conclusion 
If a premises licence was granted, this betting shop would lead to likely increased gambling activity 

with a high risk of harm to vulnerable people who live, work, study and socialise in this mixed-use 

area. Therefore, we recommend that the application is refused based on the following grounds: 

1. High numbers of vulnerable people and students in the area and the likely negative health

impact on residents and visitors within Sheffield City ward and surrounding wards

2. There is already a high concentration of similar premises in the immediate and wider vicinity.

The proposed application would create clustering of similar venues which is detrimental to the

character, vitality and economic wellbeing of the city centre. There is an existing Adult Gaming

Centre at 15 Haymarket which is 0.3km or a 4 minute walk away.

3. The likely negative health impact on children and young people, vulnerable people and the

cumulative impact when co-located in a high-risk environment.

9 Ipsos MORI on behalf of GambleAware [2019] Interim Synthesis Report: The effect of gambling marketing and advertising 
on children, young people and vulnerable adults. https://www.ipsos.com/sites/default/files/ct/news/documents/2019-
07/17-067097-01_gambleaware_interim_synthesis_report_090719_final.pdf  
10 Evans J. and Cross K. [2021] The geography of gambling premises in Britain. Available online at: 
https://bristol.ac.uk/geography/research/pfrc/themes/vulnerability/gambling/the-geography-of-gambling-premises-in-
britain/  

Page 39

https://www.ipsos.com/sites/default/files/ct/news/documents/2019-07/17-067097-01_gambleaware_interim_synthesis_report_090719_final.pdf
https://www.ipsos.com/sites/default/files/ct/news/documents/2019-07/17-067097-01_gambleaware_interim_synthesis_report_090719_final.pdf
https://bristol.ac.uk/geography/research/pfrc/themes/vulnerability/gambling/the-geography-of-gambling-premises-in-britain/
https://bristol.ac.uk/geography/research/pfrc/themes/vulnerability/gambling/the-geography-of-gambling-premises-in-britain/


South Yorkshire Police 

From: SHEFFIELD_Licensing < > 
Sent: Tuesday, September 12, 2023 8:26 AM 
To: licensingservice <  
Subject: Objection-Royal Amusements, 9 Fargate 

Sent on behalf of Licensing, South Yorkshire Police 

Licensing General  
Block C 
Staniforth Road Depot 
609 Staniforth Road 
Sheffield 
12th September 2023 

Objection to application for a premise licence under the Gambling Act 2005 

Adult Gaming Centre 

Royal Amusements, 9 Fargate 

On behalf of the Chief Constable of South Yorkshire, an objection is being made in relation to the above 
application.  

My representation is based on the prevention of crime and disorder and prevention of public nuisance. 

The premise is located within a main city centre hotspot for violence and antisocial behaviour.  There are 
several adult gambling centres in the nearby vicinity which often bring about issues of violence, criminal 
damage, antisocial behaviour and drug use.  This in turns places demands on resources and poses 
ongoing issues for the nearby premises.   

On this basis I have no option to object to these proposals. Further information is attached detailing these 
issues. 

This emailed representation is made in accordance with the agreement with the Licensing Authority on the 
18th October 2006 to accept representations by email. 

Regards. 

South Yorkshire Police Licensing Department 
Mossway Police Station 
Mossway 
Sheffield 
S20 7XX 

Page 40



RESTRICTED (when complete) MG 11

WITNESS STATEMENT 
(Criminal Procedure Rules, r. 16.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9)

Signature: Signature Witnessed by:  ............................................  

2013 RESTRICTED (when complete) 

URN 

Statement of P BRIGGS  ..........................................................................................................................  

Age if under 18 Over 18 ....  (If over 18 insert "over 18") Occupation: Police Constable 2941 ...........................  

This statement (consisting of  1 page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I make 
it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it, anything which 
I know to be false, or do not believe to be true. 

Signature   (witness) Date: 05/09/2023  .  

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded (supply witness details on rear) 

 I am a Police Office in South Yorkshire Police currently seconded to the Home Office as part of Operation 
GRIP. This is a violent crime initiative looking at where we can reduce violent crime, across South Yorkshire. 
The majority of what we do is “hot spot policing” This is an evidence based policing model and involves 
targeted activity where violent crime is most concentrated.  

It works by defining the hot spot area to understand the problems, second part is to look at the data that is 
held within the force and then analyse that data to create a full picture of what is happening, in order to plan 
a response.  

We currently have 24 hotspot areas with South Yorkshire across Sheffield, Rotherham, Doncaster and 
Barnsley.  

Violent crime that we measure is, as agreed by the home office: 
- Homicide

- Rape

- Robbery (personal)

- Assault with injury

- Assault without injury

One of our main hot spot areas in Sheffield city centre is High Street and Fargate with key times where 
violence is occurring between 1600-2300 daily but spikes during the weekend. We have had 137 recorded 
violent offences in this area, in a 12 month period, this does not include individual premises that themselves 
become hot spots in their own right.  

I am aware of an application that has been submitted for an adult gaming centre at 9 Fargate Sheffield S1 
2HD and would like to raise the following concerns and to object to the application.  

Page 41



RESTRICTED (when complete) MG 11 

Continuation of Statement of: P  BRIGGS .................................................................................................. 

Page 2 

Signature: Signature Witnessed by:  ............................................  

2013 RESTRICTED (when complete) 

The location of the premises is within our main hotspot area for violence and although we cannot attribute 
violence to a premises not yet open these types of premises often bring about issues of crime and anti-social 
behaviour due to the clientele they attract.  

There are three of these types of premises on Haymarket under ½ mile away and also four bookmakers, in 
the same location. These venues have caused many issues over the years from violence, criminal damage, 
ASB, drug dealing and CSE.  

I have worked in Sheffield city centre for over 20 years and I have first-hand experience of how these types 
of premises cause issues outlined above as well as health implications of those that become addicted to 
gambling.  

Due to the issues that were being caused in these premises we launched Bet Watch to try and deter crime 
and disorder. Although this was positive, once the new gambling legislation around fixed price betting 
terminals came into force, some bookmakers closed, and the concentration of these venues lessoned in the 
area. However, some issues have remained and they take a significant amount of resources to elevate the 
problems caused.  

Fargate has been in a state of decline for a number of years and is currently undergoing a transformation 
using a European grant fund and once completed should bring it back to how it used to be with a concentration 
of cafes and restaurants and city centre living.  

It would be my worry that by allowing this premises to be granted a license that the same problems we 
experience in the same and similar premises in the city centre will just occur here to, and there is no evidence 
to suggest that it won’t.  

Page 42



Green Party City Ward Councillors – Cllr Ruth 
Mersereau and Cllr Martin Phills 

From: Ruth Mersereau < >  
Sent: Wednesday, August 2, 2023 11:45 AM 
To: licensingservice <licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk> 
Cc:  
Subject: Objection - 9 Fargate Gambling establishment 

City ward councillors would like to strongly object to the application for a gambling establishment at Royal 
Amusements, 9 Fargate (page 12). 

As has been noted in a previous objection by public health to a nearby proposal for a gambling shop in 
Haymarket, there are a number of land-based gambling premises already existing in the area. 

Gambling shops in the city centre have attracted anti-social behaviour which has deteriorated the area, and 
taken significant resource to address. Introducing a gambling centre to Fargate will risk introducing more 
antisocial behaviour to Fargate and deteriorating the area, in direct conflict with the council’s aims to 
regenerate Fargate through the Future High Street Scheme. 

It also will likely disturb residents living on Fargate, and runs counter to the council’s aim to introduce more 
housing into the city centre and Fargate, by potentially attracting anti social behaviour to the area which 
would make it a worse place to live as well as visit, as well as incurring additional costs and resource to 
address. 

Officers noted about nearby Fitzalan Square: ‘Fitzalan square has had significant reinvestment to improve 
amenities and the former Post Office is a Sheffield Hallam University site. However, despite some 
reductions in gambling establishments since the redevelopment it remains an area which has proliferation 
of gambling and high cost credit in close proximity to sensitive receptors and sensitive locations.’ 

As noted in government publication: (https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/gambling-related-harms-
evidence-review) 

‘This suggests harmful gambling is related to health inequalities….The most socio-economically deprived 
and disadvantaged groups in England have the lowest gambling participation rates, but the highest levels of 
harmful gambling and they are also the most susceptible to harm’ 

The proposed Fargate location is close to areas of high deprivation, as noted in the public health objection 
to the nearby Haymarket gambling shop application. 

In addition public health officers identified 4 sensitive receptors and locations near the Haymarket location, 
which applies also to this Fargate application: 

‘The site visit identified types of sensitive locations in close proximity to the proposed site: 
- South Yorkshire Police Snig Hill
- Sheffield Magistrates Court
- Sheffield Hallam University
- Pawnbrokers and cheque cashing/cash converter premises

The sensitive receptors at this site who are potentially more vulnerable to exposure to gambling premises 
and products are offenders (perhaps 13% prevalence of problem gambling) and young people. 

Sheffield Street Outreach Network Meeting (05/10/22) noted concerns around the tendency for street 

Page 43

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/gambling-related-harms-evidence-review
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/gambling-related-harms-evidence-review


communities to gravitate towards (nearby Castlegate, Dixon Lane and Exchange Street) as a meeting point 
(therefore being vulnerable to criminal behaviour in the area such as drug dealing). Many people involved in 
the street community have substance misuse and other mental health difficulties.’ 

Many universities students live nearby the proposed Fargate location, as well as nearby Sheffield Hallam 
University facilities, such as on Fitzalan Square. From the same government gambling publication: 

‘The highest rates of gambling participation are among people who have higher academic qualifications, 
people who are employed, and among relatively less deprived groups. People who are classified as at-risk 
and problem gamblers are more typically male and in younger age groups.’ 

As well as detriment to the area through attracting anti-social behaviour, we believe a gambling shop in this 
location would also pose a material risk to the health and wellbeing of vulnerable people, from students to 
people who may suffer from drug addiction, be rough sleeping and/or homeless, who may use the service. 

On the basis that this will be a negative addition to Fargate, which is being regenerated, both for people 
visiting and living in the area, and would have a material impact to health and wellbeing of young and 
vulnerable people, we believe this application should be rejected.” 

Please note that in addition the Cathedral area is also a known area of anti-social behaviour that the council 
and police are aware of and go to some effort to attempt to address, with the police developing Problem 
Oriented Plans (POP plans) for this. McDonalds and outside Boots can also be an area of anti-social 
behaviour. 

Adding a gambling shop to this location, an area of known anti-social behaviour, will likely make this worse, 
as we have seen in Haymarket and Fitzalan Square previously, and also currently in High Street and 
Cathedral area. 

We’re also concerned that it would expose vulnerable people to gambling debt, such as students and 
people who may be suffering from drug addiction, rough sleeping and/or homelessness. 

Martin Phipps – City Ward 

Best wishes 

Ruth 
Ruth Mersereau 
Green Party Councillor for City Ward, Sheffield 

Page 44



ChangingSheff – ‘The residents’ association for 27,000 
people living within a radius of 750 metres of City Hall’ 

From: 
Sent: Wednesday, September 13, 2023 5:47 PM 
To: licensingservice <licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk> 
Cc: Peter Sephton 
Subject: Adult Gaming Centre premises licence application for the 9 Fargate, Sheffield. 

This objection is against the Royal Amusements application for a gaming shop with slot machines and 
jackpot prizes up to £500 at 9 Fargate being granted an Adult Gaming Licence. 

Adding a facility that in this location is completely unacceptable, as the agencies charged with policing, 
controlling and supporting the area are having to devote excessive resources to cope with the current 
situation of drug and alcohol abuse and anti-social behaviour, so this is going to make their attempts to 
control the problems even more challenging. 

The proximity of the congregating points for people suffering from mental health issues and drug and 
alcohol addiction - being the Archer Project, McDonalds, and the Cathedral grounds – means that the 
nearby addition of a facility offering gambling would be like giving a bucket of petrol to a pyromaniac. It 
would be madness and inevitably make the currently unacceptable situation much worse. 

The full Objection is attached. 

Please confirm its receipt 

Secretary of ChangingSheff 
www.ChangingSheff.org 

Page 45

mailto:licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk
http://www.changingsheff.org/


Re: Royal Amusements application for an alcohol licence : OBJECTION 

From ChangingSheff, the residents’ association for 27,000 people living in Sheffield 

City Centre: 

This objection is against the Royal Amusements application for an AGC licence at 9 

Fargate - next to Café Nero - for a gaming shop with slot machines and jackpot prizes up to 

£500 

1. The areas outside the Cathedral, McDonalds and Boots are known for anti-social

behaviour which the council and police go to some effort to attempt to address. A

gambling shop in this location will likely make this worse, as has been seen in

Haymarket and Fitzalan Square. (a comment from Local Councillors)

2. Fargate was already a crime ‘hotspot’ and gambling centres elsewhere in Sheffield -

such as Fitzalan Square - have led to a rise in incidents. (a comment by S.Y. Police)

3. The mental health risks associated with harmful gambling raise concerns the proposal

could attract vulnerable people. (a comment by the Director of Public Health)

4. With the regeneration of Fargate underway at a projected cost of £18million and the

goal to turn it into a high-quality events and cultural space, this seems to fly smack in

the face of that goal. We don't need Fargate becoming an extension of Haymarket. (a

comment by a local resident)

5. The proximity of the congregating points for people suffering from mental health issues

and drug and alcohol addiction - being the Archer Project, McDonalds and the

Cathedral grounds – means that the nearby addition of a facility offering gambling would

be like giving a bucket of petrol to a pyromaniac. It would be madness and inevitably

make the currently unacceptable situation worse.

6. Four recent independent expressions of concern from members of the public to

ChangingSheff over the fears being generated in an area of around 100 metres radius

around Sheffield Cathedral include:

a. “A friend of the wife of one of our committee members was walking up East

Parade at the side of the Cathedral one recent lunchtime when she was

approached by one of the 'street' community who started demanding money

and behaving extremely aggressively and being intimidating right in her face.

She ran away and he started to chase after her so she went into the reception

of a solicitors. The receptionist asked if she could help and when she told her

she said "Oh yes it's a massive problem, it happens all the time. We are always

having to get the police out." This was at lunchtime - in the middle of the day -

in broad daylight.

Page 46



b. “Apparently George Street (by the Curzon) is a favourite sleeping place for

Street dwellers and some need stepping over to get by. I’ve also had a report

of hordes of teenagers by McDonald's.

c. “I'm getting more people with mental health issues at the Cathedral, sometimes

tipping over to aggression, often with significant personal hygiene issues.

d. “We've all seen an escalation of ASB recently - it might be worth asking if SCC,

police and Help Us Help partners are aware of this and can they act?

7. Adding a facility that adds gambling in this location is completely unacceptable, as the

agencies charged with policing, controlling and supporting the area are having to

devote excessive resources to cope with the current situation, so this is going to make

their attempts to control the problems even more challenging.

8. At the time when Fargate is having an £18millin remodelling exercise, it would be

outrageous to add to the situation by accepting a gambling den.

9. The three key licensing objectives which guide the way that the Commission and
licensing authorities perform their functions and the way that gambling businesses
carry on their activities, are:

preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated 
with crime or disorder, or being used to support crime 

ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way 

protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited 
by  gambling 

The third objective is destined to fail 

10 It would be unconscionable for an AGC licence to be granted at 9 Fargate to support a 

gambling facility. The Licensing Committee is asked to take an authoritative view of its 

responsibilities and refuse the application. 

Submitted by Peter Sephton, on behalf of ChangingSheff, the residents’ association for 

27,000 people living within a radius of 750 metres of City Hall. 

Web: www.ChangingSheff.org 

23-09-13-Objection to Royal Amusements Licence

Page 47



Victoria Hall Methodist Church 

From: J HAIGH   
Sent: Monday, August 14, 2023 2:12 AM 
To: licensingservice <licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk> 
Subject: Opposing the planning permission of Royal amusements, 9 Fargate. Sheffield. S12HD 

Oppostion to planning application from Mohammed Yousaf. For Royal Amusements, 9 Fargate Sheffield S1 
2HD. 

I am the minister of Victoria Hall Methodist Church and as such the Church are the landlords of several 
shop spaces on Chapel Walk. 

I oppose this application for a number of reasons. 

1. It is only a few feet away from Victoria Hall where we support many people who are addicts. One
significant addiction is gambling and several of those who are supported by us are very upset that they will
have to walk past this centre to get to our front door where they are offered support.

2. The City of Sanctuary is housed on Chapel Walk and there are many who will walk past this gambling
centre who are on very low income and are being supported as they go through the process of being an
assylum seeker and refugee. They may find it attractive to spend the little money they have on the illusive
dream that they may win some significant money to live on. Others may consider it a place to take their
mind off the stress and the loneliness.

3. I know that there is much work being done to re-develop Fargate and Chapel Walk as a destination for
people with some retail, but also attractive places for people to meet to eat, drink and be entertained and to
socialise. Is such a gambling shop in keeping with the exciting and weclomed blue print for this part of
Sheffield? I would suggest that for those with families coming into the city it wouldnt. Neither would it be for
teenagers who could be tempted to go into such places. It would certainly remain a temptation for those
who have addiction issues with gambling.

I work alongside other organisations who are looking to support the vulnerable and those with addictions 
and I really do feel that this amusement shop would be in the wrong place and ask you to seriusly consider 
my oppoaition. 

Yours Sincerely 

Rev Jonathan Haigh  

Victoria Hall Methodist Church. 

Page 48

mailto:licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk


The Foundry Victoria Hall 

Page 49



Sheffield City Council Licencing Service 
Block C Staniforth Road Depot 

Staniforth Road 
S9 3HD 

14th August 2023 
To Whom it may concern, 

I am writing on behalf of The Foundry Sheffield who lease the Victoria Hall building on Chapel Walk, 

in regards to the application for a premises licence under the Gambling Act 2005 at 9 Fargate, 

Sheffield. S1 2HD which we strongly oppose. 

The Foundry is a CIO which exists to help improve the lives of the inhabitants of the people of 

Sheffield and surrounding areas through providing spaces and facilities to charities and organisations 

at low cost rates. The building is a community hub of a variety of support services, including 

addiction support groups. The Victoria Hall building has a footfall of approximately 1500 individuals 

each week, accessing support services.  

Opening a gambling premises at the end of the walk could be dire to so many individuals who access 

the support services at Victoria Hall. The services and facilities provided contribute to less anti social 

behaviour around the end of Fargate, and for many of these individuals, they are trying to remove 

themselves from old habits and ways. The introduction of a gambling shop could devastate the 

progress made or force them to not access the services that they so desperately need.  

A reduction in individuals accessing the services will likely have a negative effect within the town 

centre as they will have nowhere else to go and there may then be an increase in antisocial 

behaviour.  

The gambling shop will negatively affect our organisation and reduce the footfall down Chapel Walk, 

which is the opposite effect of what the council are trying to achieve currently.  

Gambling shops increase anti social behaviour and we have staff members who lone work until 

midnight or later, increasing the risk of staff not getting home safely or feeling vulnerable when 

leaving work.  

Please do not hesitate to contact me to discuss this matter further. 

Yours sincerely, 

Rose Durant  

Chief Executive Officer 

 

Page 50



The Cathedral Church of St Peter & St Paul 

From: Jason Carr <  >  
Sent: Wednesday, September 13, 2023 4:41 PM 
To: Gareth Barrett <  > 
Subject: Objection to Adult Gaming Licence Application for 9 Fargate 

Dear  

I have been passed your details as being the relevant person to raise objections against the Adult Gaming 
Licence being sought for 9 Fargate. 

My understanding is that this needs to reference the undermining of one or more of the three licensing 
objectives and I believe that this is the case. 

With respect to “preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime 
or disorder, or being used to support crime” I am concerned that the location of such a premise so close to 
an area that is already subject to a high degree of anti-social behaviour and crime will only exacerbate an 
existing problem and at the very least make it more difficult to manage.  We already work closely with the 
local NPT and the City Centre teams to encourage a presence around the Cathedral and Fargate and I am 
aware from our conversations how stretched their resources already are.  The location of a gambling 
location would likely only add to the stressors and problems in an already under pressure area of the City. 

With regards to “protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by 
gambling”, I am very concerned that its location will increase chances of exploitation for various groups of 
vulnerable people who engage with the Cathedral.  This includes vulnerable people accessing the space as 
a place of worship, for pastoral support and/or to engage in some of the activities that take place here. 
There is also a concern around the vulnerability of people who access peer support programmes in the 
building and those that are currently engaging with the Archer Project and are, by definition, some of the 
most vulnerable people in our City. It would seem entirely unhelpful to be placing an establishment such as 
is being proposed so close to a place where so many vulnerable people are regularly accessing support. 

I appreciate you taking the time to read my objections. 

All best wishes 

Jason Carr 
Chief Operating Officer 
The Cathedral Church of St Peter & St Paul 

Church Street Sheffield S1 1HA 

Page 51

https://www.sheffieldcathedral.org/sheffield-cathedral-illuminated-starlight


1 x Resident Objection 

From: ann walton   
Sent: Wednesday, September 13, 2023 6:54 PM 
To: licensingservice <licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk> 
Subject: Licencing Objection Gambling Fargate 

Re: Objection to Gambling Licence Application by Royal Amusements for 9 Fargate 

As a resident if the city centre and a member of Sheffield Cathedral clergy, I wish to object to the 
application for a gaming licence at these premises in Fargate.  

This area is already identified by the Police, Sheffield City Council  and residents as a hotspot for anti 
social  behaviour. A police operation is in progress to alleviate the situation. There is little evidence of 
change for the better since it is a difficult and complex process to change behaviours.  The addition of a 
gambling venue will only make the problem worse as has been evidenced by the problems around a similar 
place in Haymarket and by research studies. 
It is highly improbable that this venue could be run to avoid increasing crime and disorder.  

In addition the people who spend time around the top of High Street and Fargate are vulnerable and prone 
to peer pressure to engage in gambling beyond their means.  

Young people often gather in the immediate vicinity close to McDonalds and there is potential for them 
bring drawn into gambling by the proximity of this "amusement". 
The renovation of Fargate and the development of new retail and leisure will inevitable bring more people 
into the area, which may be good trade for the gambling venue but be harmful to society in increasing harm 
through gambling and anti social behaviour.  

I strongly object to this application on the basis of clear evidence that the presence of a gaming shop will 
increase crime and disorder and be draw the young and vulnerable into harmful gambling.  

Ann Walton 

Page 52

mailto:licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk


Appendix ‘C’ 

Planning Comments and applicant response 
  

Page 53



SCC Planning Comments 
 
From: Planning Officer <####################>  
Sent: Tuesday, August 1, 2023 4:11 PM 
To: licensingservice <licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk> 
Cc: planningdc@sheffield.gov.uk 
Subject: 213623 - Adult Gaming Centre Licence Application - 9 Fargate, Sheffield, S1 2HD 
 
Good afternoon, 
 
I have received a planning consultation request for the above licensing application. 
 
I note that no hours of use are stated on the application form. Please be aware that the adult gaming centre 
was recently granted planning permission under application 23/01628/CHU, with the following condition: 
 
No customer shall be permitted to be on the premises outside the hours of 08:00 to 00:30 (the 
following morning) on any day. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and occupiers of adjoining property. 
 
We would suggest that any gambling license should include the same opening hours restriction for 
consistency.  
 
Kind regards, 
 
############ 
Principal Planning Officer 
 
########### 
 

Development Management 
Planning Service 
City Futures 
Sheffield City Council 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 54



Applicants response to SCC Planning Comments 

From:   
Sent: Tuesday, August 8, 2023 5:15 PM 
To: Ryan Cannister <Ryan.Cannister@sheffield.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: Adult Gaming Centre Licence Application - 9 Fargate, Sheffield, S1 2HD 

Hi Ryan, 

The newspaper that it will be published is Sheffield Telegraph and www thestar.co.uk . 

With respect to the planning department comments we respond as follows: 

You will no doubt be aware that there is a clear separation between the Gambling Act, the Licensing Act 
2003 and planning legislation. Licensing applications are always viewed independently of applications 
under the Licensing act 2003 and planning. 

Unlike other premises licence types, Planning and licensing is not viz-a-viz relationship under the Gambling 
Act 2005, an Adult Gaming Centre does not have default conditions limiting the hours of operation and we 
see no reason why there should be any conditions attached to the Licence. 

We also note the following in Sheffield City Councils Statement of Principles 3.9 Integration with planning 
‘The Licensing Authority recognises that there should be a clear separation of the Planning and Licensing 
Functions. Licensing applications will not be a re-run of the planning application.’ 

Further you will note my client has the option to appeal any conditions placed on the planning permission 
and is awaiting specialist advice on the same and should therefore not be prejudiced by Licensing.  

Please do not hesitate to call me If you wish to discuss this further. 

Kind regards 

Page 55



Appendix ‘D’ 

Mapped sensitive buildings and locations of the area 
Part 5 of the Statement of Principles 

 

Page 56



Sheffield City Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy: 
 
Policy paragraph 5.2 – Location 
Policy paragraph 5.4 – Risk 
Policy paragraph 5.5 – Area 
 
Sensitive Building, Location, Risk and Area Policy Mapping around 9 Fargate, Sheffield City Centre: 

 

Search Engine used Google 

Key word searches used “Sheffield City Centre” and then: 
“school” “university” “young person” “childrens homes” “student accommodation” “student halls” “park” “disability” 
“mental health” “hospital” “vulnerable adults” “substance misuse” “children services” “money lending” “pawn broker” 
 

 

Policy 5.2 Location: 

• a school, university, college, nursery or other similar premises substantially used by or for children or young persons (including children’s 
homes and specialist units)  

 

 • Sheffield Hallam University – City Campus - 38-40 Howard St, Sheffield City Centre, Sheffield S1 1WB 

• Sheffield Hallam University – City Campus - Shefffield Business School - 38-40 Howard St, Sheffield City Centre, Sheffield S1 1WB 

• Sheffield Hallam University – City Campus - Sheffield Institute of Education - Charles St, Sheffield City Centre, Sheffield S1 2LX 

• Sheffield Hallam University – City Campus - Sheffield Institute of Arts – Fitzalan Square, S1 2AY 

• Sheffield Hallam University – Students Union - 6 Paternoster Row, Sheffield, S1 2QQ 

• Wanlin Dance School - Surrey St, Sheffield City Centre, Sheffield S1 2LG (all ages) 

• Freeman College - Sterling Works, 88 Arundel St, Sheffield City Centre, Sheffield S1 2NG 

• Ink Dance School – TFC building, 94 Surrey Street, Sheffield, S1 2LG (all ages) 

• University of Sheffield  - Department of Psychology – Cathedral Court, 1 Vicar lane, Sheffield City Centre, S1 2LT 

• University of Sheffield - Faculty of Engineering – 3 Solly Street, Sheffield City Centre, S1 4DE 

• Sheffield college’s adult learning centre – 18 Hawley Street, S1 2EE 

• CTS Training, - 24-26 High Court, Sheffield City Centre, S1 2EP 
 
Student Accommodation/Halls 

 

• Gladstone Building – Student accommodation – 1 St James Row, Sheffield City Centre, S1 2EU 

• Sheffield Star – Student accommodation, Star Resident, York Street, Sheffield City Centre, S1 2ER 

• Prestige Student Living Straits Manor - 52 West street, Sheffield City Centre, S1 4FD 

• Hello Student Accommodation, Trippet Lane - 1 Penton Street, Sheffield City Centre, S1 4EL 

• Hello Student Accommodation, Provincial House - Solly Street, Sheffield City Centre, S1 4FE 

P
age 57

https://www.shu.ac.uk/welcome/prepare/finding-your-way-around
https://www.shu.ac.uk/About-us/Academic-departments/Sheffield-Business-School
https://www.shu.ac.uk/about-us/academic-departments/institute-of-education
https://www.shu.ac.uk/welcome/prepare/finding-your-way-around
https://www.shu.ac.uk/welcome/prepare/finding-your-way-around
https://www.wanlindance.co.uk/
https://rmt.org/freeman/
https://www.inkdance.co.uk/
https://www.sheffield.ac.uk/psychology
https://www.sheffield.ac.uk/engineering
https://sheffcol.ac.uk/adult-learning-campus
https://www.ctstraining.co.uk/
https://www.thornsett.com/gladstone-building/
https://www.crm-students.com/sheffield/sheffield-star
https://prestigestudentliving.com/student-accommodation/sheffield/straits-manor?utm_source=Google%20Business&utm_medium=organic&utm_campaign=Straits%20Manor%20Google%20Business%20Profile
https://www.hellostudent.co.uk/student-accommodation/sheffield/
https://www.hellostudent.co.uk/student-accommodation/sheffield/


• Hello Student Accommodation, Portobello House -  3 Portabello Street, Sheffield, S1 4EL 

• Walsh Court Student Halls - 23-27 Trippet Lane, Sheffield City Centre, S1 4EL 

• Bailey Street UNINN Student accommodation - 39 Bailey Street, Sheffield, S1 1TY 

• Steelworks, Student Halls - 29 Rockingham Street, Sheffield City Centre, S1 4WB 

• Bailey Fields, Student Halls - 4 Rockingham Street, Sheffield City Centre, S1 4TT 

• Homes for Students Rockingham House - 1 Newcastle Street, Sheffield City Centre, S1 3PD 
 

Policy 5.2 Location: 

• a park or similar space used for children’s play or young people’s recreational activity;  
 

 Parks 

• Peace Gardens, Sheffield City Centre, 50 Pinstone Street, Sheffield City Centre, S1 2HH 

• Pounds Park, Sheffield City Centre, S1 4GE 

• Devonshire Green, 158 Devonshire Street, Sheffield City Centre, S1 4GT 

• Fitzalan Square (park and garden), Sheffield City Centre, S1 2GD 

• Pocket parks 
▪ Musical Pocket Park, Charter Square, Sheffield City Centre, S1 4HS 
▪ Matilda Street Pocket Park, 1 Sidney Street, Sheffield City Centre, S1 4RG 
▪ Howard Street Pocket Park, 48 Howard Street, Sheffield City Centre, S1 1WB 

 

Policy 5.2 Location: 

• a Hospital, Mental Incapacity or Disability Centre, mental health projects and facilities or similar premises;  

 

 Disability Services and Support Organisations 

• Disability Sheffield -  The Circle, 33 Rockingham Lane, Sheffield City Centre, S1 4FW 

• Autism Centre for Supported Employment - 22 Paradise Square, Sheffield City Centre, S1 2DE 

• Aim Assessments - 32 Eyre Street, Sheffield City Centre, S1 4QZ 
 
Mental Health Services / Projects / Facilities 

• Sheffield Support Hub – 44 Bank Street, Sheffield, S1 2DS 

• Maan Somali Mental Health (Sheffield) – 8 Paradise Street, Sheffield, S1 2DF 

• Sheffield Counselling and CBT - Courtwood House, Silver Street, S1 2DU 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 58

https://www.hellostudent.co.uk/student-accommodation/sheffield/
https://studentsource.co.uk/student-accommodation/sheffield/walsh-court
http://www.uninnstudent.com/book;year=23-24;yearId=66460722222222222222;city=Sheffield;cityId=664600671261122222;property=Bailey%20Street;propertyId=664605680468103222
https://steelworks-students.com/
https://nowstudents.co.uk/location/sheffield/bailey-fields/
https://wearehomesforstudents.com/student-accommodation/sheffield/rockingham-house?utm_source=Google%20Business&utm_medium=organic&utm_campaign=Rockingham%20House%20Google%20Business%20Profile
https://www.sheffieldmentalhealth.co.uk/services/disability-sheffield
https://ac4se.org/
https://www.aimassessments.co.uk/about-us/
https://www.mhm.org.uk/sheffield-support-hub
https://www.sheffieldmentalhealth.co.uk/services/maan-somali-mental-health-sheffield
https://www.feelingstronger.co.uk/


Policy 5.2 Location: 

• vulnerable adult centres and community buildings (e.g. centre for gambling addicts)  

 

 • Change Grow Live – 91 Division Street, Sheffield S1 4GE 

• The Sunday Centre, Victoria Hall Methodist Church - Norfolk Street, Sheffield City Centre, S1 2JB 

• Salvation Army – Charter Row Lifehouse - 126 Charter Row, Sheffield, S1 4HR 

• The Archer Project - Sheffield Cathedral, Church Street, Sheffield S1 2EF 

• The Foundry - Victoria Hall, Norfolk Street, Sheffield S1 2JB 

• City of Sanctuary Sheffield - The Sanctuary, 37-39 Chapel Walk, Sheffield City Centre, S1 2PD 

 
Policy 5.2 Location: 

• substance misuse treatment services 

 
 • Addaction Sheffield, 42 Sidney Street, Sheffield City Centre, S1 4RH 

• Sheffield Non-Opiate Service, 44 Sidney Street, Sheffield City Centre, S1 4RH 

 
Policy 5.2 Location: 

• youth or other children or vulnerable people specialist services 
 

 • Sheffield Futures, Star House, 43 Division Street, Sheffield City Centre, S1 4GE 

• The Corner, 91 Division Street, S1 4GE 

• Element Society, Yorkshire House, 66 Leopold Street, Sheffield City Centre, S1 2GZ 

• Roundabout, Local Youth Housing Charity – The Circle, 33 Rockingham Lane, Sheffield City Centre, S1 4FW 

• Roundabout Homeless Prevention Service, 22 Union Street, Sheffield City Centre, S1 2JP 

• YASY (Youth Association South Yorkshire), 10 Carver Street, Sheffield City Centre, S 1 4FS 

• Haven c/o the Circle, 33 Rockingham Lane, Sheffield, S1 4FW 

 
Policy 5.2 Location: 

• locations known to attract unaccompanied vulnerable young people or criminals  
 

 • Cathedral (please see The Archer Project above) 

• Fargate - area subject to a POP-problem orientating policing plan due to the level of crime and disorder 

• Peace Gardens  

• South Yorkshire Police, Snig Hill, Sheffield, S3 8LY 

• Sheffield Magistrates Court, Castle Street, Sheffield City Centre, S3 8LU 

 

P
age 59

https://www.changegrowlive.org/
https://thesundaycentre.org/
https://www.salvationarmy.org.uk/charter-row-lifehouse
https://www.sheffieldmentalhealth.co.uk/services/cathedral-archer-project
https://www.victoriahallsheffield.org/about
https://www.sheffieldmentalhealth.co.uk/services/city-of-sanctuary
https://www.fulfillinglivesevaluation.org/about/counterfactual/addaction-sheffield/
https://sheffielddact.org.uk/drugs-alcohol/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2013/05/Non-Opiates-Services-Info-A5-leaflet-FINAL.pdf
https://www.sheffieldfutures.org.uk/
https://www.sheffieldmentalhealth.co.uk/services/the-corner
https://www.sheffieldmentalhealth.co.uk/services/element-society
https://www.roundabouthomeless.org/what-we-do/about-us/
https://www.roundabouthomeless.org/what-we-do/about-us/
https://www.facebook.com/YASYworks/?locale=en_GB
https://www.havenorg.uk/
https://www.sheffieldmentalhealth.co.uk/services/cathedral-archer-project
https://www.southyorks.police.uk/find-out/your-neighbourhood-policing-team/sheffield-city-centre/
https://www.find-court-tribunal.service.gov.uk/courts/sheffield-magistrates-court


Policy paragraph 5.4 – Risk 

• Whether the premises is in an area subject to high levels of crime and/or disorder 

• Location of areas/buildings that attract or involve the presence of children and vulnerable people (e.g. schools, colleges, universities, leisure 
centres, certain shops, children’s homes, substance misuse treatment services or other specialist services for children and vulnerable 
people; money lending organisations etc)  (- see location lists above) 

• Demographics of the area and in particular to vulnerable groups (eg the location of the premises in deprived areas, level of social housing, or 
location in relation to money lending businesses)  

• Location of services for vulnerable groups in the area (- see location list above) 

• Deprivation of local area (at the very least the Ward area)  

• Local policies and strategies to assist in the promotion of the licensing objectives (see also Integrating Strategies at Part 3 of policy)  
(see below and Policy paragraph 5.5 – Area below) 
 

 • Levels of Crime and Disorder in proposed area: Sheffield Central and North West | Police.uk (www.police.uk) 
(search based on premises post code) 

• City Ward Profile:  City.pdf (sheffield.gov.uk) 

• Local Insight profile (Sheffield Wards) for ‘City’ area – includes demographics and deprivation 
 

Money lending organisations: 
 

• Everyday Loans Sheffield, First Floor Abbey House, 1 Leopold Street, Sheffield City Centre, S1 2GY 

• Cash Shop Sheffield, 2-4 Fitzalan Square, Sheffield, S1 2AZ 

• H&T Pawnbrokers, The Kiosk, 1-13 Angel Street, Sheffield City Centre, S3 8LN 

• H&T Pawnbrokers, 27 King Street, Sheffield City Centre, S3 8LF 

• Ramsden, The Moor, Sheffield City Centre, S1 4PF 

• Browns Family Jewellers, 107 Pinstone Street, Sheffield City Centre, S1 2HJ 

 
Integrating Strategies – Local policies and strategies  
 

• Sheffield Future High Street Fund (FHSF) scheme – made up of 3 interventions: 
1. Public Realm and Infrastructure - Enhance the public realm and infrastructure on Fargate and High Street to facilitate outdoor 

events, reduce crime, improve green transport connectivity, and support a resident community with improved services and waste 
management facilities. The infrastructure in Fargate will facilitate a year round program of events which create greater use by 
families/children.  The works have commenced and due to be completed in Autumn 2024. 

2. Event Central - The redesign and refurbishment of 20-26 Fargate as a community focussed cultural hub in the city. Works to be 
commenced early 2024 and expected to open in Spring 2025. 

3. Front Door Scheme - Support landowners through the to open upper floor access and improve active frontage to Fargate and 
High Street and connecting pedestrian routes by providing grant funding for appropriate projects e.g. new housing, workspace, 

P
age 60

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/sites/default/files/docs/your-city-council/facts-figures/ward-profiles/City.pdf
https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fsheffield.communityinsight.org%2Freports%2F1458%2FLocalInsight-City-ca1458101571_4c6e9e1c6230871a26055c742770ac04-20230516123824499.doc&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK
https://www.everyday-loans.co.uk/find-your-local-branch/sheffield
https://cashshop.co.uk/find-a-store/in/sheffield
https://handt.co.uk/pages/store-details?id=6707
https://handt.co.uk/pages/store-details?id=6464
https://www.ramsdensforcash.co.uk/branches/sheffield-the-moor/
https://www.brownsfamilyjewellers.co.uk/stores/sheffield?utm_source=google&utm_medium=organic&utm_campaign=gmb-listing-sheffield
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=30037


cultural, community or art based uses. Examples include grants to the Church Burgesses and Victoria Hall/The Foundry on Chapel 
Walk for shop front improvements and access works to bring forward new uses for upper floors (including disabled lift access to 
grow the venue) – VictoriaHall/the Foundry is identified as a sensitive building under the gambling policy.  

 

• Proposed GP Hub site to be located on Church Street – this would fall under a sensitive location under the gambling statement of 
principles (policy) paragraphs 5.1 to 5.5 

• See further plans and strategies below  

   
Policy paragraph 5.5 – Area 

• the possible impact a gambling premises may have on any premises that provide services to children, young people and vulnerable persons, 
i.e. a place of education, play, recreation or treatment or vulnerable adult centres in the area and any mitigating factors put in place by the 
applicant to reduce risk (see location list above) 

• the possible impact a gambling premises may have on residential areas where there may be a high concentration of families with children and 
any mitigating factors put in place by the applicant to reduce risks  (- see below) 

• the size of the premises and the nature of the activities taking place  

• appropriate number of staff and supervision procedures  

• levels of crime in the area and the impact of the grant of the licence (see above in Risk) 

• If the applicant has offered any conditions which would mitigate risks and be reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives.  

• How the premises will operate to restrict access to children, young persons and vulnerable persons  

• Details of any partnership working arrangements the operator has in place with police, social care or similar agencies).  

• How the risk of online gambling will be managed if offered at a premises 

 

 • Director of Public Health Report | Sheffield City Council 

• City Centre Strategic Vision | Sheffield City Council – characterises different neighbourhoods of the city centre, usage and vision 

• Allocated Residential areas in the City Centre - Draft Sheffield Plan for future land use: Sheffield Plan Policies Map (arcgis.com) 
(Screenshot of city centre proposed usage attached) 
 

P
age 61

https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=3547
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=3547
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/s62698/v2New%20Sheffield%20Health%20Centres%20Update%20final.pdf
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/public-health/director-public-health
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/planning-development/city-centre-strategic-vision
https://sheffieldcc.maps.arcgis.com/apps/instant/sidebar/index.html?appid=2bb7e6bcb78d4141816cbf8611f0bd5b


 
 

 

The buildings and areas listed above have been placed on mapping documents below to view the location of them to the proposed 

gambling premises  

P
age 62



P
age 63



P
age 64



P
age 65



P
age 66



P
age 67



P
age 68



P
age 69



P
age 70



P
age 71



Appendix ‘E’
Notices of hearing, regulations and hearing procedure 

Page 72



 GAMBLING ACT 2005 

Notice of hearing of representations in respect of the following 
application:  
GA05 Premises Licence Application – Adult Gaming Centre 

To:  on behalf of Director of Public Health 

Sent via email: 

The Sheffield City Council being the licensing authority, on the 16th of August 2023 received an 
application for a premises licence in respect of the premises known as;  

Royal Amusements, 9 Fargate, Sheffield, S1 2HD 

During the consultation period, the Council received representations from the following 
interested parties:  

• Director of Public Health Office – Sheffield City Council

• South Yorkshire Police

• Green Party City Ward Councillors, Cllr Ruth Mersereau & Cllr Martin Phipps

• ChangingSheff – Residents Association

• Victoria Hall Methodist Church

• The Foundry Victoria Hall

• The Cathedral Church of St Peter & St Paul

• 1 x Local Resident – A Walton

The Council now GIVES YOU NOTICE that the representations will be considered at a hearing 
to be held at Sheffield Town Hall on Monday 6th of November 2023 at 10.00am; following 
which the Council will issue a notice of determination of the application. 

The documents which accompany this notice are the relevant representations which have been 
made. 

The particular points on which the Council considers that it will want clarification at the hearing 
from a party are as follows: 

1) The representation you have made with reference to these particular premises and the
licensing objectives / SCC’s Statement of Principles (Gambling Policy)/ Gambling
Commission Guidance or the relevant codes of practice.

2) You may also be asked questions by the parties to the hearing, relating to your
representation.

Please complete the attached ‘Notice of Attendance Form’ and return it to: Licensing Service, 
Sheffield City Council, Block C Staniforth Road Depot, Staniforth Road, Sheffield, S9 
3HD within five (5) working days before the day or the first day on which the hearing is to be 
held. 

Dated:  17th October 2023 Signed: Shimla Finch 
The officer appointed for this purpose 
Licensing Strategy and Policy Officer 

Please address any communications to: Licensing Service, Sheffield City Council, Block C Staniforth Road Depot Staniforth Road 

Sheffield S9 3HD. licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk Page 73

mailto:licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk


 GAMBLING ACT 2005 

Notice of hearing of representations in respect of the following 
application:  
GA05 Premises Licence Application – Adult Gaming Centre 

To: South Yorkshire Police 

Sent via email: 

The Sheffield City Council being the licensing authority, on the 16th of August 2023 received an 
application for a premises licence in respect of the premises known as;  

Royal Amusements, 9 Fargate, Sheffield, S1 2HD 

During the consultation period, the Council received representations from the following 
interested parties:  

• Director of Public Health Office – Sheffield City Council

• South Yorkshire Police

• Green Party City Ward Councillors, Cllr Ruth Mersereau & Cllr Martin Phipps

• ChangingSheff – Residents Association

• Victoria Hall Methodist Church

• The Foundry Victoria Hall

• The Cathedral Church of St Peter & St Paul

• 1 x Local Resident – A Walton

The Council now GIVES YOU NOTICE that the representations will be considered at a hearing 
to be held at Sheffield Town Hall on Monday 6th of November 2023 at 10.00am; following 
which the Council will issue a notice of determination of the application. 

The documents which accompany this notice are the relevant representations which have been 
made. 

The particular points on which the Council considers that it will want clarification at the hearing 
from a party are as follows: 

1) The representation you have made with reference to these particular premises and the
licensing objectives / SCC’s Statement of Principles (Gambling Policy)/ Gambling
Commission Guidance or the relevant codes of practice.

2) You may also be asked questions by the parties to the hearing, relating to your
representation.

Please complete the attached ‘Notice of Attendance Form’ and return it to: Licensing Service, 
Sheffield City Council, Block C Staniforth Road Depot, Staniforth Road, Sheffield, S9 
3HD within five (5) working days before the day or the first day on which the hearing is to be 
held. 

Dated:  17th October 2023 Signed: Shimla Finch 
The officer appointed for this purpose 
Licensing Strategy and Policy Officer 

Please address any communications to: Licensing Service, Sheffield City Council, Block C Staniforth Road Depot Staniforth Road 

Sheffield S9 3HD. licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk Page 74

mailto:licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk


 GAMBLING ACT 2005 

Notice of hearing of representations in respect of the following 
application:  
GA05 Premises Licence Application – Adult Gaming Centre 

To: Cllr Ruth Mersereau & Cllr Martin Phipps – Green Party City Ward Councillors 

Sent via email: ruth.mersereau@councillor.sheffield.gov.uk 
martin.phipps@councillor.sheffield.gov.uk 

The Sheffield City Council being the licensing authority, on the 16th of August 2023 received an 
application for a premises licence in respect of the premises known as;  

Royal Amusements, 9 Fargate, Sheffield, S1 2HD 

During the consultation period, the Council received representations from the following 
interested parties:  

• Director of Public Health Office – Sheffield City Council

• South Yorkshire Police

• Green Party City Ward Councillors, Cllr Ruth Mersereau & Cllr Martin Phipps

• ChangingSheff – Residents Association

• Victoria Hall Methodist Church

• The Foundry Victoria Hall

• The Cathedral Church of St Peter & St Paul

• 1 x Local Resident – A Walton

The Council now GIVES YOU NOTICE that the representations will be considered at a hearing 
to be held at Sheffield Town Hall on Monday 6th of November 2023 at 10.00am; following 
which the Council will issue a notice of determination of the application. 

The documents which accompany this notice are the relevant representations which have been 
made. 

The particular points on which the Council considers that it will want clarification at the hearing 
from a party are as follows: 

1) The representation you have made with reference to these particular premises and the
licensing objectives / SCC’s Statement of Principles (Gambling Policy)/ Gambling
Commission Guidance or the relevant codes of practice.

2) You may also be asked questions by the parties to the hearing, relating to your
representation.

Please complete the attached ‘Notice of Attendance Form’ and return it to: Licensing Service, 
Sheffield City Council, Block C Staniforth Road Depot, Staniforth Road, Sheffield, S9 
3HD within five (5) working days before the day or the first day on which the hearing is to be 
held. 

Dated:  17th October 2023 Signed: Shimla Finch 
The officer appointed for this purpose 
Licensing Strategy and Policy Officer 

Please address any communications to: Licensing Service, Sheffield City Council, Block C Staniforth Road Depot Staniforth Road 

Sheffield S9 3HD. licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk Page 75

mailto:ruth.mersereau@councillor.sheffield.gov.uk
mailto:martin.phipps@councillor.sheffield.gov.uk
mailto:licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk


 GAMBLING ACT 2005 

Notice of hearing of representations in respect of the following 
application:  
GA05 Premises Licence Application – Adult Gaming Centre 

To: Mr Peter Sephton on behalf of ChangingSheff Residents Association 

Sent via email:         

The Sheffield City Council being the licensing authority, on the 16th of August 2023 received an 
application for a premises licence in respect of the premises known as;  

Royal Amusements, 9 Fargate, Sheffield, S1 2HD 

During the consultation period, the Council received representations from the following 
interested parties:  

• Director of Public Health Office – Sheffield City Council

• South Yorkshire Police

• Green Party City Ward Councillors, Cllr Ruth Mersereau & Cllr Martin Phipps

• ChangingSheff – Residents Association

• Victoria Hall Methodist Church

• The Foundry Victoria Hall

• The Cathedral Church of St Peter & St Paul

• 1 x Local Resident – A Walton

The Council now GIVES YOU NOTICE that the representations will be considered at a hearing 
to be held at Sheffield Town Hall on Monday 6th of November 2023 at 10.00am; following 
which the Council will issue a notice of determination of the application. 

The documents which accompany this notice are the relevant representations which have been 
made. 

The particular points on which the Council considers that it will want clarification at the hearing 
from a party are as follows: 

1) The representation you have made with reference to these particular premises and the
licensing objectives / SCC’s Statement of Principles (Gambling Policy)/ Gambling
Commission Guidance or the relevant codes of practice.

2) You may also be asked questions by the parties to the hearing, relating to your
representation.

Please complete the attached ‘Notice of Attendance Form’ and return it to: Licensing Service, 
Sheffield City Council, Block C Staniforth Road Depot, Staniforth Road, Sheffield, S9 
3HD within five (5) working days before the day or the first day on which the hearing is to be 
held. 

Dated:  17th October 2023 Signed: Shimla Finch 
The officer appointed for this purpose 
Licensing Strategy and Policy Officer 

Please address any communications to: Licensing Service, Sheffield City Council, Block C Staniforth Road Depot Staniforth Road 

Sheffield S9 3HD. licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk Page 76

mailto:licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk


 GAMBLING ACT 2005 

Notice of hearing of representations in respect of the following 
application:  
GA05 Premises Licence Application – Adult Gaming Centre 

To: Rev Jonathan Haigh on behalf of Victoria Methodist Church 

Sent via email:  

The Sheffield City Council being the licensing authority, on the 16th of August 2023 received an 
application for a premises licence in respect of the premises known as;  

Royal Amusements, 9 Fargate, Sheffield, S1 2HD 

During the consultation period, the Council received representations from the following 
interested parties:  

• Director of Public Health Office – Sheffield City Council

• South Yorkshire Police

• Green Party City Ward Councillors, Cllr Ruth Mersereau & Cllr Martin Phipps

• ChangingSheff – Residents Association

• Victoria Hall Methodist Church

• The Foundry Victoria Hall

• The Cathedral Church of St Peter & St Paul

• 1 x Local Resident – A Walton

The Council now GIVES YOU NOTICE that the representations will be considered at a hearing 
to be held at Sheffield Town Hall on Monday 6th of November 2023 at 10.00am; following 
which the Council will issue a notice of determination of the application. 

The documents which accompany this notice are the relevant representations which have been 
made. 

The particular points on which the Council considers that it will want clarification at the hearing 
from a party are as follows: 

1) The representation you have made with reference to these particular premises and the
licensing objectives / SCC’s Statement of Principles (Gambling Policy)/ Gambling
Commission Guidance or the relevant codes of practice.

2) You may also be asked questions by the parties to the hearing, relating to your
representation.

Please complete the attached ‘Notice of Attendance Form’ and return it to: Licensing Service, 
Sheffield City Council, Block C Staniforth Road Depot, Staniforth Road, Sheffield, S9 
3HD within five (5) working days before the day or the first day on which the hearing is to be 
held. 

Dated:  17th October 2023 Signed: Shimla Finch 
The officer appointed for this purpose 
Licensing Strategy and Policy Officer 

Please address any communications to: Licensing Service, Sheffield City Council, Block C Staniforth Road Depot Staniforth Road 

Sheffield S9 3HD. licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk 

Page 77

mailto:licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk


 GAMBLING ACT 2005 

Notice of hearing of representations in respect of the following 
application:  
GA05 Premises Licence Application – Adult Gaming Centre 

To: Ms Rose Durant on behalf of the Foundry Victoria Hall 

Sent via email:  

The Sheffield City Council being the licensing authority, on the 16th of August 2023 received an 
application for a premises licence in respect of the premises known as;  

Royal Amusements, 9 Fargate, Sheffield, S1 2HD 

During the consultation period, the Council received representations from the following 
interested parties:  

• Director of Public Health Office – Sheffield City Council

• South Yorkshire Police

• Green Party City Ward Councillors, Cllr Ruth Mersereau & Cllr Martin Phipps

• ChangingSheff – Residents Association

• Victoria Hall Methodist Church

• The Foundry Victoria Hall

• The Cathedral Church of St Peter & St Paul

• 1 x Local Resident – A Walton

The Council now GIVES YOU NOTICE that the representations will be considered at a hearing 
to be held at Sheffield Town Hall on Monday 6th of November 2023 at 10.00am; following 
which the Council will issue a notice of determination of the application. 

The documents which accompany this notice are the relevant representations which have been 
made. 

The particular points on which the Council considers that it will want clarification at the hearing 
from a party are as follows: 

1) The representation you have made with reference to these particular premises and the
licensing objectives / SCC’s Statement of Principles (Gambling Policy)/ Gambling
Commission Guidance or the relevant codes of practice.

2) You may also be asked questions by the parties to the hearing, relating to your
representation.

Please complete the attached ‘Notice of Attendance Form’ and return it to: Licensing Service, 
Sheffield City Council, Block C Staniforth Road Depot, Staniforth Road, Sheffield, S9 
3HD within five (5) working days before the day or the first day on which the hearing is to be 
held. 

Dated:  17th October 2023 Signed: Shimla Finch 
The officer appointed for this purpose 
Licensing Strategy and Policy Officer 

Please address any communications to: Licensing Service, Sheffield City Council, Block C Staniforth Road Depot Staniforth Road 

Sheffield S9 3HD. licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk 

Page 78

mailto:licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk


 GAMBLING ACT 2005 

Notice of hearing of representations in respect of the following 
application:  
GA05 Premises Licence Application – Adult Gaming Centre 

To: Mr Jason Carr on behalf of The Cathedral Church of St Peter & St Paul 

Sent via email: 

The Sheffield City Council being the licensing authority, on the 16th of August 2023 received an 
application for a premises licence in respect of the premises known as;  

Royal Amusements, 9 Fargate, Sheffield, S1 2HD 

During the consultation period, the Council received representations from the following 
interested parties:  

• Director of Public Health Office – Sheffield City Council

• South Yorkshire Police

• Green Party City Ward Councillors, Cllr Ruth Mersereau & Cllr Martin Phipps

• ChangingSheff – Residents Association

• Victoria Hall Methodist Church

• The Foundry Victoria Hall

• The Cathedral Church of St Peter & St Paul

• 1 x Local Resident – A Walton

The Council now GIVES YOU NOTICE that the representations will be considered at a hearing 
to be held at Sheffield Town Hall on Monday 6th of November 2023 at 10.00am; following 
which the Council will issue a notice of determination of the application. 

The documents which accompany this notice are the relevant representations which have been 
made. 

The particular points on which the Council considers that it will want clarification at the hearing 
from a party are as follows: 

1) The representation you have made with reference to these particular premises and the
licensing objectives / SCC’s Statement of Principles (Gambling Policy)/ Gambling
Commission Guidance or the relevant codes of practice.

2) You may also be asked questions by the parties to the hearing, relating to your
representation.

Please complete the attached ‘Notice of Attendance Form’ and return it to: Licensing Service, 
Sheffield City Council, Block C Staniforth Road Depot, Staniforth Road, Sheffield, S9 
3HD within five (5) working days before the day or the first day on which the hearing is to be 
held. 

Dated:  17th October 2023 Signed: Shimla Finch 
The officer appointed for this purpose 
Licensing Strategy and Policy Officer 

Please address any communications to: Licensing Service, Sheffield City Council, Block C Staniforth Road Depot Staniforth Road 

Sheffield S9 3HD. licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk 

Page 79

mailto:licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk


 GAMBLING ACT 2005 

Notice of hearing of representations in respect of the following 
application:  
GA05 Premises Licence Application – Adult Gaming Centre 

To: Ms Ann Walton 

Sent via email:   

The Sheffield City Council being the licensing authority, on the 16th of August 2023 received an 
application for a premises licence in respect of the premises known as;  

Royal Amusements, 9 Fargate, Sheffield, S1 2HD 

During the consultation period, the Council received representations from the following 
interested parties:  

• Director of Public Health Office – Sheffield City Council

• South Yorkshire Police

• Green Party City Ward Councillors, Cllr Ruth Mersereau & Cllr Martin Phipps

• ChangingSheff – Residents Association

• Victoria Hall Methodist Church

• The Foundry Victoria Hall

• The Cathedral Church of St Peter & St Paul

• 1 x Local Resident – A Walton

The Council now GIVES YOU NOTICE that the representations will be considered at a hearing 
to be held at Sheffield Town Hall on Monday 6th of November 2023 at 10.00am; following 
which the Council will issue a notice of determination of the application. 

The documents which accompany this notice are the relevant representations which have been 
made. 

The particular points on which the Council considers that it will want clarification at the hearing 
from a party are as follows: 

1) The representation you have made with reference to these particular premises and the
licensing objectives / SCC’s Statement of Principles (Gambling Policy)/ Gambling
Commission Guidance or the relevant codes of practice.

2) You may also be asked questions by the parties to the hearing, relating to your
representation.

Please complete the attached ‘Notice of Attendance Form’ and return it to: Licensing Service, 
Sheffield City Council, Block C Staniforth Road Depot, Staniforth Road, Sheffield, S9 
3HD within five (5) working days before the day or the first day on which the hearing is to be 
held. 

Dated:  17th October 2023 Signed: Shimla Finch 
The officer appointed for this purpose 
Licensing Strategy and Policy Officer 

Please address any communications to: Licensing Service, Sheffield City Council, Block C Staniforth Road Depot Staniforth Road 

Sheffield S9 3HD. licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk 

Page 80

mailto:licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk


GAMBLING ACT 2005 

Notice of hearing of representations in respect of the following 
application:  
GA05 Premises Licence Application – Adult Gaming Centre 

To Mr Mohammed Yousaf 

Sent via email:

The Sheffield City Council being the licensing authority, on the 16th of August 2023 received an 
application for a premises licence in respect of the premises known as;  

Royal Amusements, 9 Fargate, Sheffield, S1 2HD 

During the consultation period, the Council received representations from the following 
interested parties:  

• Director of Public Health Office – Sheffield City Council

• South Yorkshire Police

• Green Party City Ward Councillors, Cllr Ruth Mersereau & Cllr Martin Phipps

• ChangingSheff – Residents Association

• Victoria Hall Methodist Church

• The Foundry Victoria Hall

• The Cathedral Church of St Peter & St Paul

• 1 x Local Resident – A Walton

The Council now GIVES YOU NOTICE that the representations will be considered at a hearing 
to be held at Sheffield Town Hall on Monday 6th of November 2023 at 10.00am; following 
which the Council will issue a notice of determination of the application. 

The documents which accompany this notice are the relevant representations which have been 
made. 

The particular points on which the Council considers that it will want clarification at the hearing 
from a party are as follows: 

1) Your response to the representations made, upon which you may ask and be asked
questions by the parties to the hearing.

2) You may also be asked questions by the parties to the hearing, relating to your application
for a licence.

Please complete the attached form LAR1 and return it to: Licensing Service, Sheffield City 
Council, Block C Staniforth Road Depot, Staniforth Road, Sheffield, S9 3HD within five (5) 
working days before the day or the first day on which the hearing is to be held. 

Dated:  17th October 2023 Signed:  Shimla Finch 
The officer appointed for this purpose 
Licensing Strategy and Policy Officer 

Please address any communications to: Licensing Service, Sheffield City Council, Block C Staniforth Road Depot Staniforth Road 

Sheffield S9 3HD. licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk 

Page 81

mailto:licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk


NOTES 

Right of attendance, assistance and representation 

A party may attend the hearing and may be assisted or represented by any person, whether or not that 
person is legally qualified.  

The hearing will generally take place in public. However, the Sub-Committee may exclude the public 
from all or part of a hearing where it considers that the public interest in so doing outweighs the public 
interest in the hearing, or that part of the hearing, taking part in public. In such circumstances, a party 
and any person assisting or representing a party may be treated as a member of the public. The Sub-
Committee will exclude the public (and the parties and their representatives) during the decision 
making process.  

The Sub-Committee may require any person attending the hearing who in its opinion is behaving in a 
disruptive manner to leave the hearing, and may refuse to permit that person to return, or permit him to 
return only on such conditions as the Sub-Committee may specify. However, such a person may, 
before the end of the hearing, submit to the Sub-Committee in writing any information which he would 
have been entitled to give orally had he not been required to leave. 

Representations and supporting information 

At the hearing a party shall be entitled to:  

(a) Give further information as applicable in response to a point upon which notice has been given to
that party that clarification is required. (Note – if such clarification is required from a party this will have
been indicated in the Notice of Hearing).

(b) Question any other party, but only if given permission by the Sub-Committee; and

(c) Address the Sub-Committee

Failure of parties to attend the hearing 

If a party has given notice that he does not intend to attend or be represented at a hearing, the hearing 
may proceed in his absence.  

If a party who has not so indicated fails to attend or be represented at a hearing, the Sub-Committee 
may, where it considers it to be necessary in the public interest, adjourn the hearing to a specified date, 
or hold the hearing in the party’s absence. If the hearing proceeds in a party’s absence, the Sub-
Committee will consider and give appropriate weight to the application, representation or notice given 
by that party in their absence. 

Representations and Evidence 

A party who wishes to rely on information or documentary evidence that has not been submitted in 
advance of the issue of the Notice of Hearing should ensure that such information or evidence, 
together with sufficient copies for all the parties, is submitted to the Licensing Authority as soon as 
possible before the day of the hearing.  

Parties are reminded that documentary or other information submitted on the day of the hearing may 
only be taken into account with the consent of all the other parties.  

A party who wishes to produce audio/visual evidence should make such evidence available as soon as 
practical, and should give a minimum of two clear working days notice to the Licensing Authority to 
facilitate arrangements for the appropriate equipment to be available at the hearing. 

Procedure at hearing 

A summary of the procedure that will normally be followed at the hearing is enclosed. Page 82



It should be noted that this is a general procedure intended to cover matters that will normally be 
applicable at all hearings.  

However, depending on the circumstances of each individual case, it is recognised that other issues 
may need to be considered as preliminary points at the hearing. These may include (but are not limited 
to):  

• Whether to proceed in the absence of a party

• Whether to admit new documents/information submitted at the hearing

• Whether it is in the public interest to exclude members of the public from the hearing or any part
of the hearing (other than the decision making process)

• Whether any party wished to withdraw representations previously submitted

Special Needs  
Any person who intends to attend a hearing and who has special needs, for example in connection with 
access, language, hearing or vision, should inform the Licensing Authority as soon as practical prior to 
the day of the hearing, so that appropriate provision or arrangements may be made. 

Page 83



GAMBLING ACT 2005  

NOTICE OF ATTENDANCE FORM 

Notice of actions following receipt of notice of hearing 

To Licensing Service,  
Sheffield City Council  
Block C Staniforth Road Depot 
Staniforth Road 
Sheffield 
S9 3HD   

I/We Mr Mohammed Yousaf 

hereby confirm that we have received the Notice of Hearing dated 17th October 2023 and 

notify you as follows (please complete): 

[   ] I intend to attend the hearing on Monday 6th of November 2023 at 10.00am at 

Sheffield Town Hall.   

[   ] I/We do not intend to attend the hearing. 

[   ] I/We intend to be represented at the hearing by: ……………………………………… 

[   ] I/We consider the hearing to be unnecessary because: ……………………………… 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………... 

[   ] I/We request that ………………………………………………………….should appear at 
the hearing and set out below the point or points on which this person may be 
able to assist the authority in relation to this application, representations or 
notice of the party making the request. 

Dated: ………………………………… Signed…………………………………………………….. 

Please see Regulations overleaf 

Please complete this form and return it to:  
Licensing Service, Sheffield City Council, Block C Staniforth Road Depot, Staniforth Road, Sheffield, S9 3HD. 

licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk 

Premises: Royal Amusements, 9 Fargate, Sheffield, S1 2HD 
Hearing Date: Monday 6th November 2023 
Application Type: Grant of Premises Licence – Adult Gaming Centre 

Page 84

mailto:licensingservice@sheffield.gov.uk


Regulations 

Failure of parties to attend the hearing 
10. (1) A relevant committee may proceed with a hearing in the absence of a party or a party’s

representative if the party has— 
(a) informed the committee that he does not intend to attend or be represented at the hearing

(and has not subsequently advised the committee otherwise);
(b) failed to inform the committee whether he intends to attend or be represented at the hearing;

or
(c) left the hearing in circumstances enabling the committee reasonably to conclude that he

does not intend to participate further.
(2) If a party has indicated that he does intend to attend or be represented at the hearing, but fails to

so attend or be so represented, the relevant committee may—
(a) adjourn the hearing to a specified date if it considers it to be in the public interest, or
(b) proceed with the hearing in the party’s absence.

(3) Where the hearing proceeds in the absence of a party, the relevant committee must consider at
the hearing the application or representations made by that party.

(4) Where, under this Regulation, the relevant committee adjourns the hearing to a specified date it
must, as soon as reasonably practicable, notify the parties of the date, time and place to which
the hearing has been adjourned.

Hearings to be public 
8. (1) Subject to paragraph (2), the hearing must take place in public.

(2) A relevant committee may direct that all or part of a hearing must be in private if it is satisfied that
it is necessary in all the circumstances of the case, having regard to—
(a) any unfairness to a party that is likely to result from a hearing in public; and
(b) the need to protect as far as possible, the commercial or other legitimate interests of a party.

Proceedings of a relevant committee in conducting a hearing 
9. (1) Subject to regulations 8 and 11, a relevant committee must permit a party to attend a hearing and

be assisted or represented by any person whether or not that person is legally qualified. 
(2) At the beginning of the hearing the relevant committee must explain the procedure that it proposes

to follow in conducting the hearing.
(3) In conducting a hearing the relevant committee must ensure that each party is given the opportunity

to—
(a) address the relevant committee on any matter that is relevant to the application or review, or

any representations made on the application or review;
(b) call witnesses to give evidence on any matter that is relevant to the application or review, or

any representations made on the application or review;
(c) provide further information on, or explanation of, any matter on which the relevant committee

has indicated that it will want further clarification under regulation 6(1)(j).
(4) In conducting a hearing the relevant committee must also—

(a) permit any party to question any other party or person representing a party on any matter
that is relevant to the application or review, or any representations made on the application
or review, where the relevant committee considers that in all the circumstances it is
appropriate to do so; and

(b) take into consideration documentary or other information in support of the application or
representations produced by a party—

(i)before the hearing; or
(ii)at the hearing, with the consent of all the other parties attending the hearing.

(5) Without prejudice to paragraphs (3) and (4), a hearing must be conducted so that it takes the form
of a discussion led by the relevant committee, and the committee must not permit any cross-
examination unless it considers that cross-examination is required for it properly to consider the
application or representations made by any party.

Page 85



Gambling Act 2005 – Hearing Procedure – Regulation 9

This procedure has been drawn up in accordance with the Gambling Act 
2005 to assist those parties attending Licensing Committee hearings. 

1. The hearing before the Council is Quasi Judicial.

2. The Chair of the Licensing Committee will introduce the Committee and ask officers to
introduce themselves.

3. The Chair will ask the applicants to formally introduce themselves.

4. The Solicitor to the Committee will outline the procedure to be followed at the hearing.

5. Hearing Procedure:-

(a) The Licensing Officer will introduce the report.
(b) Questions concerning the report can be asked both by Members and the

applicant.
(c) The Licensing Officer will introduce in turn representatives for the Responsible

Authority and Interested Parties who will be asked to detail their relevant
representations.

(d) Members may ask questions of those parties
(e) With the leave of the Chair the applicant or his representative may cross

examine the representatives of the Responsible Authorities and Interested
Parties.

(f) The applicant/licensee (or his/her nominated representative) will then be asked
to:-
(i) detail the application;
(ii) provide clarification on the application and respond to the representations

made.
(g) The applicant/licensee (or his/her nominated representative) may then be asked

questions by members and with the leave of the Chair from the other parties
present.

(h) The applicant will then be given the opportunity to sum up the application.
(i) The Licensing Officer will then detail the options.
(j) There will then be a private session for members to take legal advice and

consider the application.

6. The decision of the Licensing Committee will be given in accordance with the
requirements of the Gambling Act 2005 and regulations made there under.

NB:  1) At any time in the Licensing Process Members of the Committee may request legal
advice from the Solicitor to the Committee.  This advice may be given in open
session or in private.

2) The Committee Hearing will be held in public unless and in accordance with the
Regulations the Committee determine that the public should be excluded.

Page 86


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Gambling Act 2005 - Royal Amusements, 9 Fargate, Sheffield, S1 2HD



